

**Bylaws
of
TUSCALOOSA SOCCER CLUB**

Article I – Name and Offices

Section 1.1. Name

The name of the Corporation shall be TUSCALOOSA SOCCER CLUB (the “Corporation”).

Section 1.2. Principal Office

The principal office of the Corporation is located in Tuscaloosa County, State of Alabama.

Section 1.3. Change of Address

The designation of the county or state of the Corporation's principal office may be changed by amendment of these Bylaws. The Board of Directors may change the principal office from one location to another within the named county by noting the changed address and effective date below, and such changes of address shall not be deemed, nor require, an amendment of these Bylaws:

New Address: _____

Dated: _____, 20__

New Address: _____

Dated: _____, 20__

New Address: _____

Dated: _____, 20__

Section 1.3. Other Offices

The Corporation may also have offices at such other places, within or without its state of Incorporation, where it is qualified to do business, as its business and activities may require, and as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, designate.

Article II – Nonprofit Purposes

Section 2.1. IRC Section 501(c)(3) Purposes

This Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, benevolent, civic, and educational purposes, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

Section 2.2. Specific Objectives and Purposes

The specific charitable objectives and purposes of this Corporation include but are not limited to:

- a) foster, advance and administer soccer within Tuscaloosa County and the territory defined above;
- b) enable and motivate players and coaches at all levels of competition and age to succeed and to represent the interest of its members;
- c) promote good sportsmanship, honesty, physical fitness, loyalty and courage through its organized athletic competition; and
- d) support and promote the common interests of its affiliated soccer teams and clubs.

TSC shall offer, regardless of race, gender, creed and/or ability, a soccer program to all youth and adults at all levels of age and competition within Tuscaloosa County. Along with the YMCA and PARA, TSC will make soccer available to all youth, regardless of ability to pay the associated fees.

Article III – Directors

Section 3.1. Number, Term of Office, and Election

- a. The number of Directors which shall constitute the whole board shall not be fewer than 10 nor more than 15. Collectively, they shall be known as the Board of Directors (the “Board”). The first Board shall consist of 15 Directors. Thereafter, within the limits above specified, the number of Directors shall be set from time to time by the Board of Directors, evidenced by a notation in the minutes of that meeting or by a written resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office.
- b. The Board of Directors shall be comprised of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and the Members-at-Large, who are selected and elected follows:
 1. There shall be one representative of PARA, selected by PARA, who shall serve in an ex officio capacity.
 2. There shall be one representative of the YMCA selected by the YMCA, who shall serve in an ex officio capacity..
 3. There shall be one Director of Corporate and Community Sponsorship elected by a majority of the voting members present at the General Meeting.
 4. There shall be parent representatives elected by a majority of the voting members present

at the General Meeting.

- A) Two (2) Parent Representatives for the Advanced Academy
 - B) Two (2) Parent Representatives for the Junior and Senior Academy
 - C) Two (2) Parent Representatives for Girls' Competitive Teams
 - D) Two (2) Parent Representatives for Boys' Competitive Teams
- c. Ex Officio Members: The following volunteer positions shall attend Board meetings as non-voting members of the Board in an ex officio capacity: Club Director (Jr. and Sr. Developmental), Club Director (Advanced Academy), Club Director (Competitive Teams), Field / Equipment Manager, Uniform Manager and PARA Liaison.

Section 3.2. Qualifications

Directors shall be of the age of majority in the State of Alabama. Any parent of a player registered within the last year and any coach who has been rostered on the AYSA roster of a TSC team may be eligible to serve as a Director.

Section 3.3. Powers and Voting

- a. Subject to the provisions of the laws of the State of Alabama and any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws relating to action required or permitted to be taken or approved by the members of this Corporation, the activities and affairs of this Corporation shall be conducted, and all corporate powers shall be exercised, by or under the direction of the Board.
- b. Each Director shall have one (1) vote on matters subject to Board action, regardless of the number of positions the Director holds on the Board or in the Corporation.

Section 3.4. Duties

It shall be the duty of the Directors to:

- a. Perform any and all duties imposed on them collectively or individually by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws;
- b. Appoint and remove, employ and discharge, and, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, prescribe the duties and fix the compensation, if any, of all officers, agents, and employees of the Corporation;
- c. Supervise all officers, agents, and employees of the Corporation to assure that their duties are performed properly;
- d. Meet at such times and places as required by these Bylaws; and
- e. Register their addresses with the secretary of the Corporation, and notices of meetings mailed or telegraphed to them at such addresses shall be valid notices thereof.
- f. Approve Registered Teams and Affiliated Teams/Leagues.

- g. Shall from time to time make temporary rules or regulations for specific cases or occasions not provided for in the Constitution, Bylaws, General Procedures or Specific Rules, but which are deemed necessary by the Executive Committee and/or the Board to carry out the objectives of TSC.
- h. Establish requirements for membership of teams, set qualifications for coaching, and form teams to compete in various leagues and/or tournaments.
- i. The Board shall have the right and authority to suspend, bar completely, or otherwise discipline a Player, Coach, Manager, Team Assistant, Parent, or Spectator from any Member Team.
- j. All decisions by the Board will be final.
- k. The Board may conduct business at any meeting attended by at least 50% of the then current Board Members, and only after reasonable efforts have been made to notify all Board Members.
- l. The Board, in conjunction with the Director of Coaching and team managers for each team will choose and/or approve the assignment of coaches, in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board.

Section 3.5. Compensation

Directors shall serve without compensation. However, Directors shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. Any payments to Directors shall be approved in advance in accordance with this Corporation's conflict of interest policy, as set forth in Article IX of these Bylaws.

Section 3.6. Place of Meetings

- a. Meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation unless otherwise provided by the Board.
- b. Except as may be otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation, members of the Board or any committee designated thereby may participate in a meeting of the Board or such committee by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time, and participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

Section 3.7. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be set by the Board monthly. The Board may vote to cancel a monthly meeting but may cancel no more than two monthly meetings per calendar year.

The agenda for regular meetings shall be as follows:

- A. Call to Order
- B. Roll Call

- C. Introduction of Guests
- D. Acceptance of Minutes
- E. Correspondence
- F. Treasurer's Report
- G. Registrar's Report
- H. Committee Reports
- I. Unfinished Business
- J. New Business
- K. Good of the Game
- L. Adjournment

Section 3.8. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called as necessary by the President.

Section 3.9. Notice of Meetings

Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, the following provisions shall govern the giving of notice for meetings of the Board:

- a. **Regular Meetings.** No notice need be given of any regular meeting of the Board;
- b. **Special Meetings.** At least one (1) week prior notice shall be given by the Secretary of the Corporation to each Director of each special meeting of the Board. Such notice may be oral or written, may be given personally, by first class mail, by telephone, by facsimile machine, or by electronic mail, and shall state the place, date, and time of the meeting and the matters proposed to be acted upon at the meeting. In the case of facsimile or electronic-mail notification, the Director to be contacted shall acknowledge personal receipt of the facsimile or electronic-mail notice by a return message or telephone call within twenty-four hours of the first facsimile transmission; and
- c. **Waiver of Notice.** Whenever any notice of a meeting is required to be given to any Director of this Corporation under provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or the law of this state, a waiver of notice in writing signed by the Director, whether before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 3.10. Quorum for Meetings

- a. At all meetings of the Board, a quorum shall consist of a majority of the total number of Directors holding office at the time of that meeting.
- b. Except as otherwise provided under the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, no business shall be considered by the Board at any meeting at which the

required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the chair shall entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.

Section 3.11. Majority Action as Board Action

Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board, unless the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law require a greater percentage or different voting rules for approval of a matter by the Board.

Section 3.12. Conduct of Meetings

Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the Chairperson of the Board, or, if no such person has been so designated, or in his or her absence, the President of the Corporation, or in his or her absence, by the Vice President of the Corporation, or in the absence of each of these persons, by a chairperson chosen by a majority of the Directors present at the meeting. The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the Board, provided that, in his or her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 3.13. Action by Written Consent

Any action that may be taken at a regular, special or committee meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if consent is given in writing which sets forth the action to be taken, signed by all directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter. Action taken in this manner shall have the same effect as an action taken at a regular, special or committee meeting and approved in the regular course of business.

Section 3.14. Vacancies

- a. Vacancies on the Board shall exist (1) on the death, resignation, or removal of any Director, and (2) whenever the number of authorized Directors is increased.
- b. Any Director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the Chairperson of the Board, the President, the Secretary, or the Board, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation. No Director may resign if the Corporation would then be left without a duly elected Director or Directors in charge of its affairs, except upon notice to the office of the attorney general or other appropriate agency of this state.
- c. Directors may be removed from office, with or without cause, as permitted by and in accordance with the laws of this state; provided, however, that no Director may be removed without a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.
- d. Unless otherwise prohibited by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, vacancies on the Board may be filled by approval of the Board. If the number of Directors then in office is less than a quorum, a vacancy on the Board may be filled by approval of a majority of the Directors then in office or by a sole remaining Director. A

person elected to fill a vacancy on the Board shall hold office until the next election of the Board of Directors or until his or her death, resignation, or removal from office.

Section 3.15. Nonliability of Directors

The Directors shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the Corporation.

Section 3.16. Indemnification by Corporation of Directors and Officers

The Directors and officers of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation to the fullest extent permissible under the laws of this state.

Section 3.17. Insurance for Corporate Agents

Except as may be otherwise provided under provisions of law, the Board of Directors may adopt a resolution authorizing the purchase and maintenance of insurance on behalf of any agent of the Corporation (including a Director, officer, employee, or other agent of the Corporation) against liabilities asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law.

Article IV – Officers

Section 4.1. Designation of Officers

The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Corporation may also have a Chairperson of the Board, one or more Vice Presidents, Assistant Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers, and other such officers with such titles as may be determined from time to time by the Board. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, except that in no event shall the President and the Secretary be the same person.

Section 4.2. Qualifications

Any person may serve as an officer of this Corporation.

Section 4.3. Election and Term of Office

A nominating committee, appointed by the Executive Committee, shall prepare a slate of officers for a) all officers of the Association, and b) all members of the Board of Directors who are elected by the Membership for all applicable Board of Directors' positions, which shall be submitted for membership approval at the Fall General Meeting. The slate of candidates proposed by the nominating committee shall be published in the announcement of the date of the General Meeting. The slate of candidates proposed by the nominating committee shall not be

binding upon the members and nominations for applicable positions on the Executive Committee may be made at the time of the General Meeting by persons entitled to vote there on. The elected officers would serve for a period of one year, and shall begin their term on September first (1st). The elected Board Members shall serve for two years and shall begin their term on September first (1st) following their election, except as noted below.

The Election of Officers shall be conducted annually and an officer shall be deemed elected when he/she receives a majority of the votes of the membership entitled to vote at the General Meeting. **VOTING MEMBERS MUST BE PRESENT AT THE GENERAL MEETING TO VOTE AND MAY NOT VOTE BY PROXY OR ABSENTEE BALLOT.**

In the first election subsequent to the adoption of these Bylaws, and in that election only for the purpose of creating staggered two (2) year terms among the elected Board Members, the following Board Members will stand for re-election after only one year:

- One (1) Parent Representative for the Advanced Academy
- One (1) Parent Representative for the Junior and Senior Academy
- One (1) Parent Representative for Girls' Competitive Teams
- One (1) Parent Representative for Boys' Competitive Teams

Section 4.4. Removal and Resignation

Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the Board, at any time; provided, however, that an officer may only be removed from office by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or to the President or Secretary of the Corporation. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later date specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. The above provisions of this section shall be superseded by any conflicting terms of a contract which has been approved or ratified by the Board of Directors relating to the employment of any officer of the Corporation.

Section 4.5. Vacancies

Any vacancy caused by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, of any officer shall be filled by the Board of Directors. In the event of a vacancy in any office other than that of President, such vacancy may be filled temporarily by appointment by the President until such time as the Board shall fill the vacancy. Vacancies occurring in offices of officers appointed at the discretion of the Board may or may not be filled as the Board shall determine.

Section 4.6. Duties of President

The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the Board, supervise and control the affairs of the Corporation and the activities of the officers. He or she shall perform all duties incident to his or her office and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be

prescribed from time to time by the Board. Unless another person is specifically appointed as Chairperson of the Board of Directors, the President shall preside at all meetings of the Board and, if this Corporation has members, at all meetings of the members. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, he or she shall, in the name of the Corporation, execute such deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, checks, or other instruments which may from time to time be authorized by the Board.

Section 4.7. Duties of Vice President

In the absence of the President, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on, the President. The Vice President shall have other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or as may be prescribed by the Board. The Vice President shall serve as Parliamentarian

Section 4.8. Duties of Secretary

The Secretary shall:

- a. Certify and keep at the principal office of the Corporation the original, or a copy, of these Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date;
- b. Keep at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place as the Board may determine, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Directors, and, if applicable, meetings of committees of Directors and of members, recording therein the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, how called, how notice thereof was given, the names of those present or represented at the meeting, and the proceedings thereof;
- c. See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law;
- d. Be custodian of the records and of the seal of the Corporation and affix the seal, as authorized by law or the provisions of these Bylaws, to duly executed documents of the Corporation;
- e. Keep at the principal office of the Corporation a membership book containing the name and address of each and any members, and, in the case where any membership has been terminated, he or she shall record such fact in the membership book together with the date on which such membership ceased;
- f. Exhibit at all reasonable times to any Director of the Corporation, or to his or her agent or attorney, on request therefore, the Bylaws, the membership book, and the minutes of the proceedings of the Directors of the Corporation; and
- g. In general, perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board.

- h. Be responsible for club-wide communication and for the maintenance of the website.

Section 4.9. Duties of Treasurer

The Treasurer shall:

- a. Have charge and custody of, and be responsible for, all funds and securities of the Corporation, and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as shall be selected by the Board;
- b. Receive, and give receipt for, monies due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever;
- c. Disburse, or cause to be disbursed, the funds of the Corporation as may be directed by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements;
- d. Keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of the Corporation's properties and business transactions, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, and losses;
- e. Exhibit at all reasonable times the books of account and financial records to any Director of the Corporation, or to his or her agent or attorney, on request therefore;
- f. Render to the President and Directors, whenever requested, an account of any or all of his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation;
- g. Prepare, or cause to be prepared, and certify, or cause to be certified, the financial statements to be included in any required reports; and
- h. In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board.

Section 4.10. Compensation

No compensation shall be paid to corporate officers unless approved by a vote of the general membership. Any and all officer salaries, even if approved by the general membership, shall be approved in advance in accordance with this Corporation's conflict of interest policy, as set forth in Article IX of these Bylaws.

Article V – Committees

Section 5.1. Executive Committee

- a. The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of Corporation. The Executive Committee, except as otherwise provided, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, except that the Executive Committee shall not have the authority of the Board in reference to

amending, altering, or appealing these Bylaws; electing, appointing, or removing any member of the Executive Committee or any Director or officer of the Corporation; amending or restating the Articles of Incorporation; adopting a plan of merger or adopting a plan of consolidation with another corporation; authorizing the sale, lease, exchange, or mortgage of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the Corporation; authorizing the voluntary dissolution of the Corporation or revoking the proceedings therefor; adopting a plan for the distribution of the assets of the corporation; or amending, altering, or repealing any action or resolution of the Board which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered, or repealed by the Executive Committee.

- b. By a majority vote of its members, the Board may at any time revoke or modify any or all of the authority of the Executive Committee so delegated; increase or decrease, but not below two (2), the number of the members of the Executive Committee; and fill vacancies on the Executive Committee from the members of the Board. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings, cause them to be filed with the corporate records, and report the same to the Board from time to time as the Board may require.

Section 5.2. Other Committees

The following Standing Committees and others as needed may be appointed yearly:

- A. Rules and Revisions Committee
- B. Coaching and Player Development Committee
- C. Public Relations/Sponsorship Committee
- D. Protest & Appeals/Disciplinary Committee

5.2.1 The President, with the approval of the Board, shall name the Chairman of each Committee.

5.2.2 The Chairmen of Standing Committees will sit on the Board in an advisory capacity, if not otherwise a member of the Board in an official capacity.

5.2.3 The President shall be an ex officio member of all Committees.

5.2.4 The Chairman of each Committee may recommend a person or persons as a member(s) of this Committee, subject to the approval of the Board. No Committee shall consist of less than three members.

5.2.5 The Standing Committees shall deal with certain designated areas of responsibility. They shall report and make recommendations to the Board. The Standing Committees shall have the authority to enforce all decisions approved by the Board within the scope of their responsibilities.

5.2.6 Duties of the Standing Committee are as follows and may be changed and/or modified by the Board as needed:

- a. Rules and Revision Committee shall be responsible for reviewing all proposals involving any amendments to the Constitution, Bylaws, General Procedures or Specific Rules and give due and careful consideration to same before submitting said proposals to the Board with their recommendations. Ensuring that each applicant for

membership submits copies of their rules, regulations and bylaws for approval. Any subsequent changes, additions or amendments must be submitted and approved by the Rules Committee, examining all applications for membership in the Association and making recommendations to the Board, and ensuring that all Rules and Bylaws of submitting organizations abide by the Rules and Regulations of TSC.

- b. Coaching and Player Development Committee shall be responsible for supervising all aspects of operating coaching clinics. Establishing and evaluating the policies and procedures for conducting coaching clinics, encouraging increased numbers of clinics and greater attendance at the National, Regional, State and local levels, maintaining consistently high standards of instruction, examination and grading of coaches at all levels, monitoring the curriculum of coaching at all levels by continually reviewing same with current material available, evaluating the quality of clinics, instructors, facilities, conduct, etc., at all levels, and maintaining records of coaching certificates through the Registrar.
- c. Public Relations/Sponsorship Committee shall be responsible for seeking sponsorship for all or part of any TSC sponsored program or event that is identified by the Board. See that TSC sponsored programs and/or events receive proper and adequate publicity.
- d. Protest and Appeals/Disciplinary Committee shall hear all appeals and protests and rule on such matters in accordance with the Constitution, Bylaws, Policies, Rules, and Procedures of TSC, the appropriate playing league, AYSA, USYSA, and USSF. The chair shall be responsible for notifying the TSC Board of Directors in writing, of the ruling of the committee. This committee shall hear all grievances and questions of an ethical nature. After the committee hears all charges and reviews any evidence regarding such matters, the committee chair shall submit committee recommendations in writing to the TSC Board of Directors for final determination. The Associate Director shall chair this committee.

Section 5.3. Meetings and Action of Committees

Meetings and action of committees shall be governed by, noticed, held, and taken in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings of the Board, with such changes in the context of such Bylaw provisions as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board and its members, except that the time for regular and special meetings of committees may be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors or by the committee. The Board may also adopt rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of meetings of committees to the extent that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the provisions of these Bylaws.

Article VI – Execution of Instruments, Deposits, and Funds

Section 6.1. Execution of Instruments

The Board, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may by resolution authorize any officer or agent of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any

instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose or in any amount.

Section 6.2. Checks and Notes

Except as otherwise specifically determined by resolution of the Board, or as otherwise required by law, the Treasurer shall have the authority to withdraw (by check or otherwise), from the funds on deposit in the name of the Corporation in any commercial banking account, an amount up to, but not exceeding, One Hundred Dollars (\$100). All other withdrawals, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money drawn on the name of the Corporation, and other evidence of indebtedness of the Corporation greater than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) shall be signed by the Treasurer of the Corporation and countersigned by the President of the Corporation, or by any officer designated in writing by the President. But if, and only if, the same person holds the offices of both President and Treasurer, all withdrawals, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money drawn in the name of the Corporation, and other evidence of indebtedness by the Corporation greater than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) shall be signed by the President of the Corporation, or by any officer designated in writing by the President, and countersigned by the Secretary of the Corporation.

Section 6.3. Deposits

All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited promptly to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board may select.

Section 6.4. Gifts

The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the nonprofit purposes of this Corporation.

Article VII – Corporate Records, Reports, and Seal

Section 7.1. Maintenance of Corporate Records

The Corporation shall keep at its principal office:

- a. Minutes of all meetings of Directors and committees of the Board, indicating the time and place of holding such meetings, whether regular or special, how called, the notice given, and the names of those present and the proceedings thereof;
- b. Adequate and correct books and records of account, including accounts of its properties and business transactions and accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, and losses;

- c. A record of its members, if any, indicating their names and addresses and, if applicable, the class of membership held by each member and the termination date of any membership; and
- d. A copy of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the members, if any, of the Corporation at all reasonable times during office hours.

Section 7.2. Corporate Seal

The Board may adopt, use, and at will alter, a corporate seal. Such seal shall be kept at the principal office of the Corporation. Failure to affix the seal to corporate instruments, however, shall not affect the validity of any such instrument.

Section 7.3. Directors' Inspection Rights

Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records, and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the Corporation, and shall have such other rights to inspect the books, records, and properties of this Corporation as may be required under the Articles of Incorporation, other provisions of these Bylaws, and provisions of law.

Section 7.4. Right to Copy and Make Extracts

Any inspection under the provisions of this article may be made in person or by agent or attorney, and the right to inspection shall include the right to copy and make extracts.

Section 7.5. Periodic Report

The Board shall cause any annual or periodic report required under law to be prepared and delivered to an office of this state or to the members, if any, of this Corporation, to be so prepared and delivered within the time limits set by law.

Article VIII – IRC 501(c)(3) Tax Exemption Provisions

Section 8.1. Limitations on Activities

- a. No substantial part of the activities of this Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation (except as otherwise provided by Section 501(h) of the Internal Revenue Code), and this Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements), any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.
- b. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, this Corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a Corporation exempt from federal income

tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or (b) by a Corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 8.2. Prohibition Against Private Inurement

No part of the net earnings of this Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, Directors or trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes of this Corporation.

Section 8.3. Distribution of Assets

Upon the dissolution of this Corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this Corporation, shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Such distribution shall be made in accordance with all applicable provisions of the laws of this state.

Article IX – Conflict of Interest and Compensation Approval Policies

Section 9.1. Purpose of Conflict of Interest Policy

The purpose of this conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt Corporation's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or Director of the Corporation or which might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Section 9.2. Definitions

- a. **Interested Person.** Any Director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing Board-delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest, as defined below, is an Interested Person.
- b. **Financial Interest.** A person has a Financial Interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:
 1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement,
 2. A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or

3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.
- c. Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial.
- d. A Financial Interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 9.3(b), a person who has a Financial Interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Section 9.3. Conflict of Interest Avoidance Procedures

a. Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an Interested Person must disclose the existence of the Financial Interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the Directors and members of committees with governing Board-delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.

b. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the Financial Interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the Interested Person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

c. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest.

1. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the governing Board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
2. The chairperson of the governing Board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
3. After exercising due diligence, the governing Board or committee shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
4. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested Directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

d. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.

1. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of

the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.

2. If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Section 9.4. Records of Board and Board Committee Proceedings

The minutes of meetings of the governing Board and all committees with Board-delegated powers shall contain:

- a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a Financial Interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the Financial Interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed; and
- b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Section 9.5. Compensation Approval Policies

- a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- c. No voting member of the governing Board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.
- d. When approving compensation for Directors, officers and employees, contractors, and any other compensation contract or arrangement, in addition to complying with the conflict of interest requirements and policies contained in the preceding and following sections of this article as well as the preceding paragraphs of this section of this article, the Board or a duly constituted compensation committee of the Board shall also comply with the following additional requirements and procedures:
 - i. the terms of compensation shall be approved by the Board or compensation committee prior to the first payment of compensation;

- ii. all members of the Board or compensation committee who approve compensation arrangements must not have a conflict of interest with respect to the compensation arrangement, which generally requires that each board member or committee member approving a compensation arrangement covered by this section:
 - 1. is not the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement, or a family member of such person;
 - 2. is not in an employment relationship subject to the direction or control of the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement;
 - 3. does not receive compensation or other payments subject to approval by the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement;
 - 4. has no material financial interest affected by the compensation arrangement; and
 - 5. does not approve a transaction providing economic benefits to the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement, who in turn has approved or will approve a transaction providing benefits to the Board or committee member;
- iii. the Board or compensation committee shall obtain and rely upon appropriate data as to comparability prior to approving the terms of compensation. Appropriate data may include the following:
 - 1. compensation levels paid by similarly situated organizations, both taxable and tax-exempt, for functionally comparable positions, "similarly situated" being organizations which are of a similar size and purpose and which have similar resources;
 - 2. the availability of similar services in the geographic area of this organization;
 - 3. current compensation surveys compiled by independent firms; and
 - 4. actual written offers from similar institutions competing for the services of the person who is the subject of the compensation arrangement.

As allowed by IRS Regulation 4958-6, if this organization has average annual gross receipts (including contributions) for its three (3) prior tax years of less than One Millions Dollars (\$1,000,000), the Board or compensation committee will have obtained and relied upon appropriate data as to comparability if it obtains and relies upon data on compensation paid by three (3) comparable organizations in the same or similar communities for similar services.

- iv. the terms of compensation and the basis for approving them shall be recorded in written minutes of the meeting of the Board or compensation committee that approved the compensation. Such documentation shall include:
 - 1. the terms of the compensation arrangement and the date it was approved;
 - 2. the members of the Board or compensation committee who were present during debate on the transaction, those who voted on it, and the votes cast by each Board or committee member;

3. the comparability data obtained and relied upon and how the data was obtained;
4. if the Board or compensation committee determines that reasonable compensation for a specific position in this organization or for providing services under any other compensation arrangement with this organization is higher or lower than the range of comparability data obtained, the Board or committee shall record in the minutes of the meeting the basis for its determination;
5. if the Board or committee makes adjustments to comparability data due to geographic area or other specific conditions, these adjustments and the reasons for them shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board or committee meeting;
6. any actions taken with respect to determining if a Board or committee member had a conflict of interest with respect to the compensation arrangement, and if so, actions taken to make sure the member with the conflict of interest did not affect or participate in the approval of the transaction (for example, a notation in the records that after a finding of conflict of interest by a member, the member with the conflict of interest was asked to, and did, leave the meeting prior to a discussion of the compensation arrangement and a taking of the votes to approve the arrangement); and
7. the minutes of Board or committee meetings at which compensation arrangements are approved must be prepared before the later of the date of the next Board or committee meeting or sixty (60) days after the final actions of the Board or committee are taken with respect to the approval of the compensation arrangements. The minutes must be reviewed and approved by the Board and committee as reasonable, accurate, and complete within a reasonable period thereafter, normally prior to or at the next Board or committee meeting following final action on the arrangement by the Board or committee.

Section 9.6. Statements

Each Director, principal officer, and member of a committee with governing Board-delegated powers shall sign a statement which affirms such person:

- a. has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy;
- b. has read and understands the policy;
- c. has agreed to comply with the policy; and
- d. understands that the Corporation is a charitable organization and that in order to maintain its federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Section 9.7. Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's-length bargaining; and
- b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes, and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit, or in an excess benefit transaction.

Section 9.8. Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Section 9.7, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing Board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Article X – Members

Section 10.1. Determination and Rights of Members

The Corporation shall have only one class of members. No member shall hold more than one membership in the Corporation. Except as expressly provided in or authorized by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, all memberships shall have the same rights, privileges, restrictions, and conditions.

Section 10.2. Qualifications of Members

The qualifications for membership in this Corporation are as follows: shall be a parent for each registered player. A member shall be entitled to one vote for each registered player. "Registered Player" shall mean a player on a registered team, or any player registered in any Developmental, Recreational, Academy, Competitive or other fee-paid soccer program sponsored by TSC. A registered player shall not include any player participating only in TSC-sponsored free soccer programs, tournaments or camps.

Section 10.3. Admission of Members

All applications for membership in TSC shall be submitted at the beginning of each season, and along with the appropriate fees, shall include:

- A. Properly completed player and/or team registration forms, prepared in accordance with the current registration instructions and procedures.

- B. Other forms as deemed necessary.

Section 10.4. Fees and Dues

Annual fees for teams are due and payable, unless otherwise provided for by the Board, at the time of registration, but no later than one month after the registration deadline of the current playing season. Teams are not considered registered until all of the team's fees are paid and information on registration forms is accepted and approved by TSC Registrar. A late registration penalty fee will be assessed for those teams not in compliance without prior approval from the TSC Registrar.

Section 10.5. Number Of Members

There is no limit on the number of members the Corporation may admit.

Section 10.6. Membership Book

The Corporation shall keep a membership book containing the name and address of each member. Termination of the membership of any member shall be recorded in the book, together with the date of termination of such membership. Such book shall be kept at the Corporation's principal office.

Section 10.7. Nonliability of Members

A member of this Corporation is not, as such, personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Corporation.

Section 10.8. Nontransferability of Memberships

No member may transfer a membership or any right arising therefrom. All rights of membership cease upon the member's death.

Section 10.9. Termination of Membership

The membership of a member shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events: a member's notice of termination delivered to the Board in writing (effective upon the date of receipt), failure to qualify under the terms for membership for one calendar year (as established in Section 10.2), and upon a determination by the Board of Directors that the member has engaged in conduct materially and seriously prejudicial to the interests or purposes of the Corporation. In the case of termination due to conduct materially and seriously prejudicial, the member shall have notice and an opportunity to be heard by the Board prior to termination. All rights of a member in the Corporation shall cease on termination of membership as herein provided.

Article XI – Meetings of Members

Section 11.1. Place of Meetings

Meetings of members shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place or places as may be designated from time to time by resolution of the Board.

Section 11.2. Regular Meetings

In anticipation of the beginning of each playing season, the President with the concurrence of the Board, shall call for a Regular Meeting of the Membership to be held between June 1 and August 30th for the Fall Playing Season and between December 1st and February 15th for the Spring Playing Season of each seasonal year. The Secretary will give written notice to all Board Members and Members at least fifteen (15) days prior to said meeting.

Section 11.3. Special Meetings of Members

Special meetings of the members shall be called by the Board, the chairperson of the Board, or the president of the Corporation, or, if different, by the persons specifically authorized under the laws of this state to call special meetings of the members.

Section 11.4. Notice of Meetings

- a. Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, notice stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the president, or the secretary, or the persons calling the meeting, to each member entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his or her address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage prepaid. Personal notification includes notification by telephone, electronic mail or by facsimile machine, provided however, in the case of electronic mail or facsimile notification, the member to be contacted shall acknowledge personal receipt of the facsimile notice by a return message or telephone call within twenty-four hours of the first facsimile transmission.
- b. The notice of any meeting of members at which Directors are to be elected shall also state the names of all those who are nominees or candidates for election to the Board at the time notice is given.
- c. Whenever any notice of a meeting is required to be given to any member of this Corporation under provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or the law of this state, a waiver of notice in writing signed by the member, whether before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 11.5. Quorum for Meetings

- a. A quorum shall consist of 25 members of the Corporation.
- b. Except as otherwise provided under the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, no business shall be considered by the members at any meeting at which the required quorum is not present, and the only motion which the Chair shall entertain at such meeting is a motion to adjourn.

Section 11.6. Majority Action as Membership Action

Every act or decision done or made by a majority of voting members present in person or by proxy at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present is the act of the members, unless the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law require a greater number.

Section 11.7. Voting Rights

Each member is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote by the members. Voting at duly held meetings shall be by voice vote. Election of Directors, however, shall be by written ballot.

Section 11.8. Action by Written Ballot

- a. Except as otherwise provided under the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or provisions of law, any action which may be taken at any regular or special meeting of members may be taken without a meeting if the Corporation distributes a written ballot to each member entitled to vote on the matter. The ballot shall:
 1. set forth the proposed action;
 2. provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of each proposal;
 3. indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement and, except for ballots soliciting votes for the election of Directors, state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the measure submitted; and
 4. shall specify the date by which the ballot must be received by the Corporation in order to be counted. The date set shall afford members a reasonable time within which to return the ballots to the Corporation.
- b. Ballots shall be mailed or delivered in the manner required for giving notice of membership meetings as specified in these Bylaws.
- c. Approval of action by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the action at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot.
- d. Directors may be elected by written ballot. Such ballots for the election of Directors shall list the persons nominated at the time the ballots are mailed or delivered.

Section 11.9. Conduct of Meetings

Meetings of members shall be presided over by the President of the Corporation or, in his or her absence, by the Vice President of the Corporation or, in the absence of all of these persons, by a Chairperson chosen by a majority of the voting members present at the meeting. The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as Secretary of all meetings of members, provided that, in his or her absence, the presiding officer shall appoint another person to act as Secretary of the meeting.

The Order of Business at the General Meeting shall be substantially as follows:

- A. Call to Order
- B. Roll Call
- C. Credentials Report
- D. Introduction of Guests
- E. Acceptance of Minutes of the previous General Meeting
- F. Proposals for change of Constitution, Bylaws, and/or General Procedures and specific Rules.
- G. Reports:
 - 1. President
 - 2. Treasurer
 - 3. Secretary
 - 4. Registrar
 - 5. Committees
- H. Unfinished Business
- I. New Business (including at least the following):
 - i. Presentation and Passage of the TSC General Budget for the Season
 - ii. Presentation and Passage of the TSC Fee Structure for the Season
 - iii. Election for Any Vacant Positions
- J. Good of the Game
- K. Adjournment

Article XII – Amendment of Articles and Bylaws

Section 12.1. Amendment by the Board of Directors

Subject to the power of the members, if any, of this Corporation to adopt, amend, or repeal the Bylaws of this Corporation and except as may otherwise be specified under provisions of law,

these Bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws adopted by approval of the Board.

Section 12.2 Amendment by the Membership

Any Member may submit proposed changes to the existing Constitution and Bylaws. These proposed changes shall be submitted in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance of any general meeting of the membership. Proposed Amendments shall be presented to the Voting Members present at the General Meeting. An amendment shall be deemed adopted by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the members present at the General Meeting, provided that at least twenty-five (25) members are present at the General Meeting.

Article XIII - Paid and Volunteer Staff

Section 13.1 Registrar

The Registrar shall attend meetings of the Board or membership as requested by the President. The Registrar shall be familiar with and administer all rules and regulations pertaining to player registration guidelines as set forth by the AYSA, USYSA, USSF, any other youth soccer association with which TSC affiliates, any Local Leagues in which our teams participate, and TSC. He/She shall maintain records and report on the number of team and/or player registrations, approve all player transfers, adds, and drops, respond to all routine correspondence to TSC pertaining registration matters, and serve as the registrar for all TSC sponsored tournaments, in accordance with these Bylaws. The Registrar shall also keep accurate records of all Coaches Credentials in such as they pertain to registration requirements, maintain a Central Registry for players and player pools, and maintain a Central Registry for Coaches. The Registrar's employment shall be reviewed on a yearly basis and shall serve solely at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 13.2 Director of Coaching

The Board of Directors shall hire a Director of Coaching whenever, in the opinion and discretion of the Board, sufficient funds exist to retain such a paid position. The Director of Coaching shall be responsible for training coaches, making coaching assignments with the advice and assistance of the Executive Committee, and fulfilling other duties, as designated by the Executive Committee and consistent with the responsibilities of a DOC in other soccer organizations.

Section 13.3 Other - Paid

Other paid staff shall be hired as appropriate at the direction of the Executive Committee, with the approval of the Board.

Section 13.4 Other – Volunteer

The Board shall appoint the following volunteer positions: Club Director (Jr. and Sr.

Developmental); Club Director (Advanced Academy); Club Director (Competitive Teams); Field / Equipment Manager; Uniform Manager; PARA Liaison.

Article XIV – Miscellaneous

Section 14.1 – Seasonal Year

The Seasonal Year shall be from September first (1st) through August thirty first (31st). Insurance coverage, when applicable, shall be for the same period of time.

Section 14.2 – Registered/Affiliated Teams

Every registered and/or affiliated team, member, club, or league shall be assessed fees semi-annually to provide funding for the operation and activities of TSC. The nature and amount of the fees shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Any registered and/or affiliated team, club, or league failing to fulfill all financial obligations to TSC will not be in good standing, and will be certified as such to all playing leagues, the AYSA and any other national soccer organization with whom we affiliate (such as U.S. Youth Soccer, U.S. Soccer Federation, etc.).

Section 14.3 – Team Membership and Composition

- a. Team membership shall be defined by the Rules and Regulations as set forth by the TSC Board of Directors.
- b. All Registered Teams and players shall abide by the Constitution, Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of TSC, all General Procedures and Specific Rules as set forth by the Board and any applicable rules and regulations of any association with which TSC is affiliated.
- c. Teams shall be formed by the Director of Coaching, in consultation with the Executive Board and with the input of other TSC coaches.
- d. It shall be the policy of the Tuscaloosa Soccer Club that all players play at their age-appropriate level. To request an exception to that policy, the following steps should be followed:
 - (a) Obtain permission from the coach or team manager of the older team to register as a player on their team.
 - (b) Obtain permission from the coach of the player's assigned team to "play up."
 - (c) Petition the President in writing for permission to register as a player for the older team, stating the reasons for the request.

If the coach of the player's assigned team refuses to permit the player to "play up," that decision may be overruled by the Executive Committee, so that the player's petition may be considered.

- e. Petitions from players to play on a team above a player's qualifying age level will be heard and decided as follows:
 - (a) The Director of Coaching will make a recommendation to the Executive Committee based upon the player's demonstrated skill level and maturity.
 - (b) The Executive Committee shall consult with the player's parents and with the coaches or managers of both teams.
 - (c) The Executive Committee shall decide whether to approve the petition after consulting with the parties mentioned in subsection (b).

Section 14.4 – Affiliation

TSC shall be the affiliate of and comply with the authority of AYSA, USYSA, USSF, and any other national soccer organization with whom TSC chooses to affiliate. TSC may operate in affiliation with PARA, the Tuscaloosa YMCA, and any other local organization at the discretion and direction of its Board of Directors. Should the Board of Directors choose to dissolve any working relationships, TSC shall retain the sole right to use the name Tuscaloosa Soccer Club.

Section 14.5 – Definitions

For the purposes of this Constitution and these Bylaws, the following definitions will apply:

- a. “Registered Team” shall be a team, in good standing, which is registered with TSC and, as such, a parent for each Registered Player shall have the full voting privileges as a voting member.
- b. “Affiliated League” shall be a league which plays within TSC’s jurisdiction.
- c. “Registered Player” shall mean a player on a registered team, or any player registered in any Developmental, Recreational, Academy, Competitive or other fee-paid soccer program sponsored by TSC. A registered player shall not include any player participating only in TSC-sponsored free soccer programs, tournaments or camps.

Section 14.6 – Territory

TSC shall represent all soccer teams wishing to affiliate with the Alabama Youth Soccer Association (“AYSA”), the United States Youth Soccer Association (“USYSA”), and/or the United States Soccer Federation (USFS) that are located in the designated territory or apply for membership in the Association, and who have an interest and sympathy with the purposes of the Association and agree to adhere to its Constitution, By-Laws, Articles of Incorporation, and such rules and regulations as may be adopted by the Executive Committee.

The designated territory shall be the Alabama Planning and Development Region 2, comprising Tuscaloosa, Fayette, Lamar, Pickens, Greene, Hale and Bibb Counties. The Association may accept voluntary applications for membership from outside this area.

Article XIII – Construction and Terms

If there is any conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation shall govern.

Should any of the provisions or portions of these Bylaws be held unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remaining provisions and portions of these Bylaws shall be unaffected by such holding.

All references in these Bylaws to the Articles of Incorporation shall be to the Articles of Incorporation, Articles of organization, certificate of Incorporation, organizational charter, corporate charter, or other founding document of this Corporation filed with an office of this state and used to establish the legal existence of this Corporation.

All references in these Bylaws to a section or sections of the Internal Revenue Code shall be to such sections of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended from time to time, or to corresponding provisions of any future federal tax code.

ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

We, the undersigned, are all of the initial Directors of this Corporation, and we consent to, and hereby do, adopt the foregoing Bylaws, consisting of 28 total pages, as the Bylaws of this Corporation.

Dated: _____

